
[.1. S. Department of Labor Occupational Safet¡r and Ìiealth Administration
Cesar Chavez h4ernorial Building
1244 Speer Eoulevard, Suite 551
Denver, CO Eû204
Main: (720) 264-6550 F ax: Q2A) 264-6585

CERTIFIED MAIL: 7012 3050 0000 4949 2279

September 20, 2013

David Brewer
c/o Justin Brunner
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ìbsger, Jungbaus & Baßsk

Dear Mr. Brurmer;

This is to advise you that we have completed our investigation of the above-referenced complaint
filed by you on behalf of your client, David Brewer (Complainant), against BNSF Railway
(Respondent), on February 19,2013, under the Federal Railroad Safety Act (FRSA), 49 U.S.C.
$20109 as amended by The Implementing Recommendations of the 9/1 1 Commission Act
(Public Law 1 110-53). In brief, Complainant alleged he was terminated on December 17,2012,
in retaliation for voicing safety concerns to marìagement.

Following an investigation by a duly-authorized investigator, the Secretary of Labor, acting
through his agent, the Regional Administrator for the Occupational Safety and Heaith
Administration (OSIIA), Region VIII, finds that there is no reasonable cause to believe that
Respondent violated 49 U.S.C. $20109 and ìssues the following findings:

Secretarv's Findings

Respondent is a railroad carrier within the meaning of 49 U.S.C. $20109 and 49 U.S.C. $20102.
Respondent provides railroad transportation, in that it transports goods using the general railroad
system. Respondent maintains a place of business in Havre, MT. Complainant was an employee
within the meaning of 49 U.S.C. $20109. Complainant was hired on June 1 1, 2007, as a
Conductor in Havre, MT. Complainant's duties included ensuring that the train and crew
members were operating in a safe manner. Complainant and Respondent are covered under the
provisions of the above-mentioned Act.

Complainaat was terminated on December I7 ,2012; he then filed a complaint with the Secretary
of Labor on February 19,2013, alieging that Respondent discriminated against him in violation
of the above-mentioned statute. As this complaint was filed v/ithin 180 days of the alleged
adverse action, it is deemed timely.

On April 2,2012, Complainant was assigned to pick up a block of trains in Shelby, MT, a¡d
transport them to a different location. Complainant walked the line of trains to inspect the brakes,
ensuring they were safe to move because Complainant alleged there was no documentation to
show who inspected the train at the time of his arrival in Shelby, MT. Respondent stated, the
trains had already been inspected and Complainants job was to move the trains from one location
to another, not to conduct additional inspections. Complainant was verbally corÌnseled by his



supervisor about not conducting unnecessafy inspections on trains that had already been
inÄpected and any future inspeCtions would result in insubordination and a violation of conduct.

Reipondent stated Complainant acknowledged that he would not conduct any further inspections
udeìs it was job specific to his assignment. Respondent stated during the conversation with
Complainant, he made no mention of any haz ardous safety conditions.

During this same conversation, complainant was verbally counseled by his supervisor about
properly recording his relieved and release times from work. Complainant was on a monthly
iepõrt for incorreðtly reporting his time. Complainant's relieved and release times were the same,

which would be impossible as Complainant was relieved in one location and travels to his home
terminal about 45 minutes away. Complainant received training for hours of service (HoS) rules
on July 1 1, 2009, and again on May 7,2012; however, did not remember receiving this training.
Compiainant was informed that any future time-recording issues would result in insubordination
and a violation of conduct.

On May 3,2012, Complainant reported to his trainmaster that while walking across a bridge. he

hippedover a loose board. complainant stated a"fter making a second complaint about the trip
hazard, it was corrected. Respondent acknowledged that Complainant voiced the concem about
the trip hazard.

On June 7 , 20l2,Ihe president and chief operating offrcer conducted a town hall meeting where
Complainant voiced Concems that Respondent was working Complainant and other employees
who were too tired to work. Respondent acknowledged Complaina¡rt voiced the concem;
however, contends neither the president nor chief operating officer communicated the concerns
to management who made the decision to discipiine and subsequent termination of Complainants
employment.

On July 6, 2012, Complainant was assigned to pick up a block of trains in Shelby, MT, and
hansport them to a different location. When looking at the documentation for the trains
Complainant found two additional trains, which had speed restrictions. Complainant attempted to
contáct the yardmaster for clarification on the train movement; however, was unable to reach
him. Once the hain movement began, Complainant hea¡d squeaking which indicated that there
were brakes engaged on the hains. Complainant was concemed that the inspection conducted by
the previous employee was not done correctly because there were handbrakes engaged.
Complainant wa.lked the train line and found additional brakes that were engaged. Respondent
contacted Complainant a"fter observing him inspecting hains. Respondent stated the inspections
had already been completed and would duplicate the efforts which would delay the crew and
cause hours ofservice problems for Complainant and other employees. Respondent stated at no
time did Complainant ever raise any safety hazards.

On August 7,2012, an investigation took place resulting fiom Complainant's failure to comply
with instructions on July 6, 2012. On August24,20.12, as a result of this investigation,
Complainant was ass^essed a Level-S, rule violation' with a 30-day records suspension and a l2-
month review period', which was in accordance 'ù¡ith Respondent's Policy for Employee
Performance and Accountability (PEPA).

I Level S, 30-day record suspension is a disciplinary action, within BNSF's Policy for Employee Performance

Accountability (PEPA), and is just a paper suspension; it does not result in time off work or lost wages. BNSF has

lo-day, 20-day, and 30-day record suspensions. Tbe length oftirne only reflects the seriousness ofthe rule violation
and the employee's progression through the disciplinary policy.

2 A time ûame that an employee is under a probation ståtus.



In October 2012, on several occasions, Respondent received HoS (hours of service) reports and
observed that Complainant had logged in the same relieved and release times from work. Due to
the repetitive nature, coupled with the fact that Complainant was only two months into his one-
year probation, the issue resulted in a formal investigation which took place on November 28,
2012. Complainant denied having ever been counseled about his hours of service, and further
stated, he had been logging his time the same way for his,entire employment.

On December 17 , 2012, as a result of Complainant's failure to comply with instruction, he was
terminated in accordance with Respondent's PEPA policy.

Complainant engaged in protected activity when he reported a safety hazard on a bridge to
management, which Respondent acknowledged. Complainant engaged in protected activþ
when he voiced during a meeting that he a¡d other employees were too tired to work long hours.
This complaint was acknowledged by Respondent; however, the evidence indicated none ofthe
managers that were present during the meeting had any bearing on Complainant's discipline or
subsequent termination decision. Complainant's alleged protected activity occurred when he
reported to management that handbrakes were engaged on trains during movement, which
created ahazatdous situation. Respondent denied Complainant raised any safety issues related to
a hazardous situation and there were no witnesses to corroborate. There is timing as Complainant
was terminated within a month of his alleged last protected activity; however, there is no
evidence of animus.

The evidence indicated Respondent terminated Complainant for having two serious rule
violations within a twelve-month period. The evidence indicated Complainant was assessed
discipline for failing to comply with instructions and put on probation as a result. Complainant
was then terminated for violating the same violation less than a year later. The evidence
indicated Respondent has disciplined other employees for the same or similar incìdents and have
applied the same discipline levels. Therefore, the preponderance of the evidence indicated that
Complainant's protected activity was not a contributing factor in his termination and Respondent
would have taken the same action in terminating Complainant in the absence of his protected
activity. Consequently, for these reasons above, this complaint is hereby dismissed.

Respondent and Complainant have 30 days from the receip ofthese Findings to file objections
and to request a hearing before an Administrative Law Judge (ALJ). Ifno objections a¡e filed,
these Findings will become final and not subject to court review. Objections must be filed in
writing with:

Chief Admini strative Law Judge
Office of Adminishative Law Judges
U.S. Departmenl of Labor
Suite 400N, Techworld Building
800 K Street NW
Washington, D.C. 20001 -8002
Phone (202) 693-7542;Fax (202) 693-7365

With copies to:

BNSF Railways
Kimberly Goroon
2500 Lou Menk AOB-3
FT Worth, TX76l3l
Phone (817) 352-1567



Gregory J. Baxter, Regional Administrator, VIII
1244 Speer Blvd., Suite 551
Denver, CO 80204
Phone (720) 264-6550;Fax (720) 264-6585

Department of Labor, Associate Solicitor
Division of Fair Labor Standards
200 Constitution Avenue NW, N2716
Washington, D.C.20210

In addition, please be advised that the U. S . Department of Labor generally does not represent any
party in the hearing; rather, each party presents his or her own case. The hearing is an
adversarial proceeding before an ALJ, in which the parties are allowed an opportunity to present
their evidence de novo for the record. The ALJ who conducts the hearing will issue a decision
based on the evidence, arguments, and testimony presented by the parties. Review ofthe ALJ's
decision may be souglÍ from the Administrative Review Board, to which the Secretary of Labor
has delegated responsibility for issuing final agency decisions under FRSA.

A copy of this letter has been sent to the Chief Administrative Law Judge along with a copy of
your complaint. The rules and procedures for the handling of FRSA cases can be found in Title
29, Code ofFederal Regulations Part 1980, a copy of which was sent to you earlier, and may be
obtained at www.osha. gov.

Sincerely,

^ ^rt--¡

,hntn'&L^J)
cr.y'ory f6*,",
Regional Administrator, VI

cc:
Chief Administrative Law Judge, USDOL
Edwa¡d Pritchard, Director U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Railroad Administration
BNSF Railways, Kimberly Garoon
Department of Labor, Associate Solicitor


